          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 October 8, 1999

                            Start:  1:05 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 2:55 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         PRISCILLA WOOTEN

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Michael Nelson

         18                                 Stephen Fiala

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Donald Singer

          4  President

             Council of Supervisors and Administrators

          5

             William Casey

          6  NYC Board of Education

          7  Jay Kerring

             Legislative Representative

          8  United Federation of Teachers

          9  Eddie Flynn

             Parents Union

         10

             Granville Stevens

         11  United Parents Association of NYC, Inc.

         12  Ron Jones

             Vice-President

         13  United Federation of Teachers

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Good morning.

          3  This is a continuation of the oversight hearing of

          4  the Committee on Education, relating to promotional

          5  policies and summer school. There were a number of

          6  people who were not able to testify early on, and we

          7  lost a lot people, audience.  However, it is

          8  important for us to have your testimony for the

          9  record, so I'm going to go right into it, I'm

         10  waiting for everybody to come.  I want you to know

         11  that, so please identify yourself for the record and

         12  we will move on as people come.

         13                 MR. SINGER:  Okay, fine.  My name is

         14  Donald Singer, and I am President of the Council of

         15  Supervisors and Administrators.

         16                 Good afternoon, Councilwoman Wooten,

         17  I can't call you Priscilla now, that right, but

         18  Council Member Wooten and members of the Education

         19  Committee.  In the past several weeks news of

         20  disappointing test scores has flooded the media.

         21  While this is cause for concern, educators agree

         22  that a drop in scores usually follows the

         23  introduction of a new testing instrument.  Further,

         24  the Chancellor has suggest that these test scores

         25  should be viewed as a baseline, a first measurement
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          2  of efforts to raise standards, neither an indictment

          3  nor a tool in the blame game.  The Council of

          4  Supervisors and Administrators suggest that the

          5  scores should be used as a diagnostic tool to ensure

          6  that our public schools are providing every child

          7  with the education necessary for the 21st Century,

          8  regardless of race, ethnicity or national origin.

          9                 CSA was appalled to learn of

         10  thousands of New York City school children were

         11  compelled to attend summer school or held back a

         12  grade as a result of flawed scoring of reading and

         13  math tests.  Instead of heeding the warning of their

         14  testing expert, Robert Tobias, the Board of

         15  Education hastily proceeded to act without

         16  reflection.

         17                 Once again, this fiasco underscores

         18  the inappropriateness of relying exclusively on one

         19  single element of performance to determine the fate

         20  of an individual.   The message that has been given

         21  to children regarding there supposed failure to

         22  achieve is most damaging.  The credibility at 110

         23  Livingston Street is seriously challenged.

         24                 We are working closely with the Board

         25  of Education via the Chancellor's Advisory Committee
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          2  on Promotion Standards, to develop new criteria for

          3  retaining a student.  No longer will the test scores

          4  be the only indicators of student failure.  Some of

          5  the concerns that we will be bringing to the

          6  Committee are:

          7                 1.  The onus should not be placed

          8  just on the youngsters.

          9                 2.  The level of readiness of the

         10  school system/resources must be available to

         11  individual schools.

         12                 3.  The extent to which there is

         13  ample staff and the professional development of

         14  staff.

         15                 4. Providing early and appropriate

         16  notification and resources to parents to assist the

         17  parent and child.

         18                 5. Implementation, it's already the

         19  end of September, beginning of October, and

         20  implementation design has not been fully

         21  disseminated to districts, schools or parents.

         22                 6. Accountability, there must be

         23  increased oversight of community school districts to

         24  ensure that all students are learning.

         25                 Just as thousands of students were

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  determined to be inadequate, principals and other

          3  school supervisors may have been terminated, forced

          4  to resign or given unsatisfactory ratings as a

          5  result of the flawed test scores this past spring.

          6  Just as high stakes testing might encourage

          7  educators to make misinformed decisions about

          8  students, evaluations of staff based solely on test

          9  scores can negatively impact on an otherwise

         10  successful school leader or educator.

         11                 Test scores do not reveal that New

         12  York City schools are failing.  But schools are

         13  failing because the system is not seeking to

         14  maintain the best educators to move our system

         15  forward. Children learn in a school where there is

         16  skilled leadership working with trained teachers to

         17  ensure the best educational practices for the

         18  children.

         19                 The New York City Board of Education

         20  violated a basic tenet in education by basing their

         21  decision to promote or fail children solely on the

         22  results of one test.  Likewise, the New York City

         23  Board of Education has been remission in judging

         24  principals as failures based solely on test scores.

         25                 We are currently witnessing an
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          2  unprecedented exodus of talent from New York City

          3  schools.  After more than three years without a new

          4  contract or raise, many principals, supervisors and

          5  administrators are leaving for better jobs in the

          6  suburbs where they will earn higher salaries and

          7  their due process rights, and thus their ability to

          8  make decisions based solely on the need of their

          9  students, are secure.  Ms. Wooten, under separate

         10  cover you will be receiving a chart of all of the

         11  vacancies by Councilmanic Districts in our City.

         12  Just if I might take one moment to say that as of a

         13  week ago there were 1,260 vacancies for school

         14  administrators in our school system, that averages

         15  at least one if not more positions for every school

         16  in New York City, is held by an interim or a teacher

         17  coordinator and not by a properly licensed or

         18  appointed supervisor.

         19                 CSA members with years of experience

         20  in New York City's public school system will be

         21  leading schools in Nassau, Suffolk, and New Jersey

         22  and Connecticut, where children already enjoy

         23  greater resources and score higher on standardized

         24  tests. This does not bold well for New York City.

         25  Only stability in this system will ensure that
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          2  children progress in reading as all other areas will

          3  continue to improve.  New programs alone will not

          4  solve the problems.  We need the best and brightest

          5  leaders within our schools to see to it that these

          6  programs are implemented properly and to see to it

          7  that teachers trained and can transmit the

          8  information to the children in a way that will

          9  guarantee their success.

         10                 Without a contract, without

         11  competitive salaries, in a the present I got you

         12  climate, the City cannot attract and maintain people

         13  with the appropriate credentials.  The pool of

         14  candidates is shrinking because the education ladder

         15  has had its rungs cut.  Even if we attract a

         16  sufficient number of people willing to replace who

         17  leave our system, the incorporation of a large

         18  number of new principals at one time is problematic.

         19    This will slow the efforts of this school system

         20  to pull itself up by the bootstraps and have a

         21  definite impact on test scores.

         22                 I would like to add in a conversation

         23  regarding our visits to high schools, I want to

         24  report that there are administrative positions being

         25  held by teachers in our high schools today, most of
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          2  whom are uncertified and are called coordinators.

          3  These teacher coordinators are filling the

          4  supervisory roles because there is no one else to

          5  fill these positions.  Senior teachers are refusing

          6  supervisory positions because they will take a

          7  $9,000 salary cut.  More and more competent

          8  supervisors are beginning to revert back to their

          9  teacher licenses.  In an unprecedented advertisement

         10  a prominent high school replacing a help wanted

         11  notice for the position of assistant principal in

         12  this Sunday's New York Times, because the wealth of

         13  talent is not coming up for these positions.

         14                 Teacher coordinators are leading

         15  departments, these are not CSA members, they are

         16  non- supervisors.  At a time when higher standards

         17  and accountability in the high school, Regents new

         18  standards are being called for, the proven effect of

         19  an instructional leader.  The high school assistant

         20  principal supervision is being challenged by teacher

         21  coordinators.  That has been historically the role

         22  of the instructional leader, the assistant principal

         23  supervision who has gone through significant and

         24  lengthy training for the position and has acquired

         25  the appropriate expertise to raise the instructional
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          2  level of the teachers to meet the need of the

          3  students. The brain drain from the City to the

          4  suburbs with its higher salary and better working

          5  conditions is becoming epidemic.  For the future

          6  health of our school system that must be stopped

          7  now.

          8                 Apparently the responsibility, again,

          9  will fall on the school principal to determine the

         10  fate of those 3,000 children who were held back

         11  unnecessarily.  These principals, assistant

         12  principals, supervisors, will have the task of

         13  reshuffling classes without further disruption of

         14  the learning process.  Will the Board of Education

         15  take the responsibility for restoring the unjustly

         16  fired school leaders the other former positions and

         17  reversing their unsatisfactory rating or will they

         18  simply march onward without accepting full

         19  responsibility?

         20                 The New York City Governance Law

         21  clearly gave the Chancellor more authority, which

         22  demands greater accountability and responsibility.

         23                 With school leaders in place, we can

         24  begin to make the strides necessary to give all our

         25  children the tools they need to succeed.  Without
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          2  us, that will never happen.

          3                 Thank you, and on a personal note, I

          4  know, Ms. Wooten that the City Council has always

          5  had the best interest of our public school system at

          6  heart, and I speak to you in the most sincere manner

          7  and say that we are at a crossroad of our school

          8  system now.  I urge the City Council and the

          9  Education Committee, in particular, to work with us

         10  and with the education community at this very sign

         11  crossing.  I know you have in the past, and I know

         12  that you will in the future.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I don't think we

         15  have stopped, however, as you have indicated in you

         16  presentation that there are tremendous amount of

         17  reforms that are taking place.  Early on, this

         18  Committee hesitated to talk in terms of what being

         19  proposed because we didn't have anything in place

         20  better to substitute for that, so you kind of stand

         21  back to see what results there are to these new

         22  reforms.

         23                 I think our hearings that we're going

         24  to be having are going to be more intensified

         25  because what it will do is, to begin to talk about
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          2  those reforms that went in place a few years ago.

          3  But right now, even though there were disturbance or

          4  void in really not knowing what was going on because

          5  of the reading test, et cetera, however, you know,

          6  we have had that, we need to move on. I'm still

          7  concerned about the standards that have been set up

          8  by the Board of Regents with no backup whatsoever

          9  for training.  This Committee, early on, was very

         10  concerned about that training process, and we even

         11  had Commissioner Mills in, and he told us it would

         12  be.  However, as the Board of Ed testified last

         13  week, there were no resources that would impact.  In

         14  fact, a Board member testified that there was not

         15  resources to update our teachers and all the other

         16  components that would make up the kind of results

         17  that we would like to see.

         18                 I'm still concerned about how we're

         19  moving forward, how many children will fall through

         20  the cracks, and there will be some.  However, this

         21  Council is not in the business of negotiating

         22  unions, we're not in the business of sitting down

         23  with you to talk about what is and what is not, we

         24  have to live with whatever you come up with at the

         25  bargaining table.
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          2                 However, we're concerned, concerned

          3  enough now to have those oversight hearings, I think

          4  on the 18th I will be visiting, this Committee will

          5  be visiting one of the schools to see in actuality

          6  what different has taken place since we were in one

          7  before.  We do go out on site visits to see the

          8  action of our young people and what they are doing.

          9  Some of the programs that are being implemented.

         10                 We are concerned about salary levels,

         11  and we have been on record talking about that.

         12  We're also concerned about the plight of our

         13  educators, but, however, you know, people get their

         14  experiences.  There is one thing that I can say to

         15  you, New York City gives its personnel the kind of

         16  training that everybody else would want in their

         17  communities and their towns, and sometimes their

         18  towns are a little easier to deal with than ours and

         19  we lose them.  We train them, we lose them, we don't

         20  have any kind of mechanism in place, salary wise

         21  mean a lot, because they could move out and make

         22  less on more than what we're doing, we're concerned

         23  about that.

         24                 However, these are issues that have

         25  to be addressed by those powers that be, we can only
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          2  be supportive of what is taking place.  I am

          3  concerned and would like to know if there is anyone

          4  from the Board of Ed that could tell us, I'm looking

          5  at your chart.

          6                 MR. SINGER:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And I

          8  specifically flagged down the schools that is in the

          9  42nd Councilmanic District, which belongs to me.

         10  You have 19, am I told, and told that also in 19 is

         11  23 vacancies?

         12                 MR. SINGER:  Yes, Ms. Wooten, four

         13  principals, 14 assistant principals, and five other

         14  supervisors.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And those five

         16  other supervisors, would you know what categories

         17  they're in?

         18                 MR. SINGER:  Education,

         19  Administrators, District Office Supervisors,

         20  Supervisors of Special Education.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And I would also

         22  like to know how long those positions have been

         23  open?

         24                 MR. SINGER:  Most six months or more,

         25  some over a year.  We have in addition to this list
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          2  the last Board of Ed vacancy, the one in September,

          3  450 additional positions have been advertised, which

          4  means that we're well into the fifteen, sixteen

          5  hundreds of positions in the City, most of which

          6  have not been filled by a minimum of six months,

          7  some over a year, and there are still interims

          8  serving in those positions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I want to raise

         10  a question and I don't know if Mr. Casey or Bert,

         11  you would want to respond to it. Am I to understand

         12  that these appointments are made through the Board

         13  of Education, Central Board of Education?  That the

         14  local boards does not have anything whatsoever to do

         15  with this now?

         16                 MR. SINGER:  May I answer that first,

         17  Ms. Wooten? No, I'm sorry, go ahead.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm going to ask

         19  Mr. Casey, you could answer, but I just want a

         20  response from the Board of Ed, you know, on that.

         21                 MR. SINGER:  I just want to say, as

         22  you know, there is a C- 30 process where each school

         23  forms a committee and that committee is responsible

         24  for the screening and interviewing.  A

         25  recommendation is made to the Superintendent and
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          2  then that is sent down to Personnel at the

          3  Chancellor's Office.  I will only tell you this, the

          4  system is not working.

          5                 MR. CASEY:  Well that is an accurate

          6  description, Chairperson Wooten, of the process that

          7  is followed.  In fact, the community school board,

          8  you're correct in terms of their role are no longer

          9  being part of the appointment process because

         10  governance changed that role.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm aware of

         12  that, that is why I raise that question.

         13                 MR. CASEY:  And that in fact it is

         14  the Superintendent who does submit a recommendation

         15  to the Chancellor's Office and that is approved.

         16                 I would only add, I don't have a

         17  level of detail that certainly we could get for you,

         18  if you required it, I would only add an insurance,,

         19  however, that where there are what are described as

         20  vacancies, there are, as Mr. Singer indicated,

         21  interim acting people in place.  So sometimes a

         22  chart like this is read thinking that there are

         23  schools that lack 174 principals, there is an

         24  interim acting person in each of those schools,

         25  while the C- 30 process does goes on.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I would also

          3  like to know the time or period on those

          4  appointments as it is related to the old system,

          5  because we said that wasn't working?  It's obvious

          6  if we have these numbers, I just want to know how

          7  long have these kinds of positions have existed?

          8                 MR. CASEY:  I do think that they vary

          9  from one district to the next, but, in fact, there

         10  has been an effort recently to tighten up the time

         11  frame.  There is a six month time frame, there are

         12  times when, in fact, districts go beyond that six

         13  month time frame, as Mr. Singer indicated.  In the

         14  past, a cause for concern was not being able to get

         15  the required number of parents to participate in the

         16  Selection Committee, and so that now there is a

         17  process in place for getting a waiver if that gets

         18  in the way.

         19                 And I do know that Mr. Singer and the

         20  CSA monitor this very, very closely in terms of

         21  compliance from district to district, and I know,

         22  Mr. Spence, as well, monitors it closely, but the

         23  level of detail that you are asking for,

         24  unfortunately, I don't have with me today, but we

         25  could certainly get that to you in terms of the time
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          2  frames.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Would this come

          4  under the umbrella of the leadership groups, parent

          5  leadership groups?

          6                 MR. CASEY:  No, Ma'am.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Well you said

          8  sometimes you are not able to get enough parents, I

          9  don't understand that.

         10                 MR. CASEY:  A C- 30 Committee

         11  requires participation of parents at the school

         12  level, anywhere from six to ten parents who are on

         13  the Selection Committee.  And in the past there have

         14  been some difficulties in some places maintaining

         15  that number of parents, rare I might say, but in

         16  some places that was a cause for concern.  So there

         17  is a process in place, at this point, where there

         18  has been a real effort and there is evidence of that

         19  effort having been made to recruit the involvement

         20  of parents that, in fact, that can be waived.  That

         21  was one step that was taken in term of trying to

         22  speed up the process, not to eliminate the

         23  participation of parents, I think the school system

         24  is very supportive of that, but where it had become

         25  a problem in terms of a process going awry and you
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          2  may have started out with six parents, and ended up

          3  with two or three, for whatever reasons, there was a

          4  question about the appointments.  So that was one

          5  step that was taken.

          6                 The other step that was clearly taken

          7  was a regular report submitted to the Chancellor and

          8  shared with Superintendents as to the status of each

          9  of these interim acting positions - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Mr. Casey, I'm

         11  looking at total vacancies in two particular

         12  districts, one 56 and one 46, that is a total

         13  breakdown.

         14                 MR. SINGER:  Districts 9 and 10, I

         15  believe, Ms. Wooten, right?

         16                 MR. CASEY:  Well both of those

         17  districts, well, District 10 in particular is the

         18  largest district in the City, and I can only assume

         19  that these are verifiable figures, I assume that Mr.

         20  Singer has gotten from information that we, in fact,

         21  have pulled together ourselves.

         22                 MR. SINGER:  From the Board of

         23  Education, your figures.

         24                 MR. CASEY:  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Mr. Casey, just
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          2  identify yourself for the record?  I was told we

          3  have some machines running for the record, and I

          4  just need you to identify who you are and the

          5  position that you are at the Board of Ed?

          6                 MR. CASEY:  Okay, my name - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I assume that

          8  everybody know, because I know.

          9                 MR. CASEY:  My name is Bill Casey,

         10  and I'm Chief Executive for Program Development and

         11  Dissemination, and I report directly to Dr. Rizzo,

         12  Deputy Chancellor for Instruction.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I really would

         14  like to get a response from the Board of Education,

         15  it in- depth kind of document, and really would want

         16  to have someone get back to me on those numbers?

         17                 MR. CASEY:  I will make sure that

         18  happens, Chairperson Wooten.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I have a little

         20  hope in my mind that things will change in 19,

         21  because we do have a super person, I'm told, that is

         22  acting now in hopes that eventually we would do what

         23  we have to do, but I am told that it is a pretty

         24  good team there that are working in District 19.  So

         25  I'm assuming that will take care of itself, but this
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          2  does warrant, I dare say what a Council member would

          3  say if you had over half of a hundred vacancies, I

          4  don't know how we can explain that.  So I appreciate

          5  you giving me that answer.

          6                 Mr. Singer, we will look into that

          7  and I think, in my conversation with the Finance

          8  Chair, Herb Berman, we are in the process of talking

          9  about addressing the flight concept of our

         10  supervisors leaving and going to other places, we

         11  will be addressing that in the coming months.  It is

         12  something that we need to address, we need to sit

         13  down to talk about, to see how we could come to a

         14  resolve to maintain our supervisors, as well as our

         15  teachers, all of them.  You know, it's almost like I

         16  can move on, I don't have to travel, I could, you

         17  know there are a lot of rationale for it, but I

         18  believe if the salary level were that of a

         19  challenge, we might not have as rapid a turnover as

         20  we have been having.

         21                 There are a lot of points in your

         22  testimony that we will be paying close attention to

         23  and I will be in touch with you, and I thank you for

         24  your testimony.

         25                 MR. SINGER:  Thank you, Chairperson
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          2  Wooten, and thank you, members of the Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I have been

          4  joined by my colleague from Staten Island, Council

          5  Member Fiala, would you have anything to say?

          6                 No, the Board is not testifying, the

          7  only thing we're relating to is CSA's testimony.

          8  But if you have a question that you would like to

          9  address to,  Mr. Casey, would you, please, come

         10  back, my colleague would like to ask you a question?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  I would like

         12  to say that I happen to concur with the Chair's

         13  remarks and I hope that we will work toward

         14  resolving the issue.

         15                 MR. SINGER:  Thank you, Councilman.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Of the Board,

         17  you know in our first hearing one of the questions

         18  that was asked, and I believe it was agreed that we

         19  would have the information for the follow- up, of

         20  the students who were told that they had to go to

         21  summer school as a consequence of the test, and then

         22  subsequently it was determined that a number of them

         23  would not have had to have gone, because of the

         24  testing company's error, student's parents were

         25  given an option, I believe of whether or not to have
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          2  that child move onto the next grade or remain

          3  behind.  Do we have the data yet on how many parents

          4  have availed themselves of either option?  How many

          5  parents have said, you know what, I want my child to

          6  stay behind, because while technically he or she is

          7  able to move forward?  They did score at the bottom

          8  of those tests, I'm just curious to wonder how many

          9  parents have availed themselves of other options?

         10                 MR. CASEY:  No, at this point

         11  Councilman, we don't have the data yet, but you are

         12  correct in terms of the Chancellor requiring in each

         13  of those cases for principals to meet with parents

         14  and discuss the possible option of choosing to have

         15  the youngster repeat a grade.  We are meeting this

         16  coming week with all of our superintendents, and it

         17  is one of the pieces of data that we are going to

         18  require in terms of the outcomes of those

         19  conferences.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Okay.  And,

         21  Madam Chair, as I permitted to ask a question on

         22  Special Ed concerning Summer Education, or was that

         23  separate hearing?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  No, that is

         25  inappropriate.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Okay, we will

          3  wait on that one, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Thank you.

          5  United Federation of Teachers, are you ready?  Are

          6  your persons here to testify? Please, identify

          7  yourself for the record?

          8                 MR. KERRING:  I am Jay Kerring.  I'm

          9  the legislation representative for the UFT.  I'm

         10  testifying on behalf of UFT's Vice- President Ronald

         11  Jones, I apologize, he was in a meeting that must

         12  have run late, he is on his way, so if he is here,

         13  when concluding my testimony, he can answer any

         14  questions that you might have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Would you want

         16  me to put, to wait, I could call someone else, if

         17  you are still waiting for him?

         18                 MR. KERRING:  Do you have somebody

         19  else to call? That is fine.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Yes, I have some

         21  parent groups here.

         22                 MR. KERRING:  Fine, whatever you

         23  decide to do, that is fine.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Okay, we will

         25  wait, we will just move on with someone else.  Okay?
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          2    Unless you just want to do it, if he is on route?

          3                 MR. KERRING:  No, I know he is on his

          4  way.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Okay.  Granville

          6  Stevens.  I know that Ed Flynn is here.

          7                 MR. FLYNN:  Good afternoon, Madame

          8  Chairman.  My name is Eddie Flynn.  I'm a

          9  representative of the Parent's Union. The paper I

         10  gave you last week is our plan on how we can solve

         11  all of these problems, everything that everyone is

         12  complaining about, we have a solution to.  It's very

         13  upsetting to the people who run the system currently

         14  and to the status quo, but nobody can attack this

         15  plan and say that it won't work and why.  We're

         16  going to bringing billions of dollars extra to the

         17  system every year, we're going to be able to fix

         18  these schools, we're going to be able to hire the

         19  best teachers and principals.  They won't be able to

         20  raid New York City anymore.

         21                 And as the subject of this hearing is

         22  on the promotional policy, that is basically what I

         23  wanted to talk to you about today.  The test scores

         24  themselves that created this, and I don't mean the

         25  mistake that McGraw Hill made, I mean these norm
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          2  reference tests are a scam, they have been for

          3  decades.  This is part of this no standards

          4  movement, it's the reason for the destruction of the

          5  school system in the first place.  We need criteria

          6  reference tests, like what the state did in the

          7  fourth grade this year, and for the first time we

          8  found out that 16 percent of the City's fourth

          9  graders are illiterate, and that two thirds of the

         10  City's fourth graders couldn't past the test.

         11                 Now when the Chancellor came here in

         12  1995, he said that by 1998 all third graders in this

         13  City would be reading at grade level, and I will

         14  explain that later, because that is a scam in

         15  itself.  This has been a top priority of the

         16  Chancellor's, he had spent millions on early grade

         17  literacy programs, he has spent millions more on

         18  professional and staff development.  He has even had

         19  an extra year to keep his promise, and on this

         20  year's fourth grade tests, which were 1998, third

         21  grade class, 67 percent of the students failed the

         22  test and 16 percent were illiterate.  This is what

         23  social promotion has caused.

         24                 There was an article, there was a

         25  series of articles in the Daily News, a few weeks
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          2  ago, about PS40, in District 28 in Queens, about how

          3  students had past the test, were reading at or above

          4  grade level, and they still were functionally

          5  illiterate and couldn't read, what is going on?

          6  What is the problem?  And the problem is that

          7  basically they're using the wrong reading curriculum

          8  and too many teachers just can't teach, they are

          9  unqualified, they're incompetent, they never should

         10  have been allowed to enter the teaching profession

         11  in the first place, and this is anyone who has read,

         12   "Why Johnny still can't Read," a new look at the

         13  scandal of our schools by Rudolph Flesh, which was

         14  published in 1986, or "Dumbing Down Our Kids," why

         15  American children feel good about themselves but

         16  can't read, write or add, which was published in

         17  1995 by Carl J. Skikes, knows what is going on.

         18  This is whole language versus phonics, and it has

         19  been going on forever.

         20                 Too many of these teacher education

         21  schools who are pushing this whole language

         22  ideology, which is part of this no standards

         23  movement, and they have been doing it for decades,

         24  have been producing unqualified and incompetent, so-

         25  called educators. Because of mismanagement at the
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          2  Board of Ed, New York City has traditionally been

          3  the employer of last resort for unqualified and

          4  incompetent educators who could not get jobs and

          5  better paying in less corrupted school districts

          6  outside of the City.  Over the years, because the

          7  system, in general, protected them and the Teachers'

          8  Union also, these unqualified and incompetent

          9  teachers have become unqualified and incompetent

         10  principals and administrators superintendents, and

         11  this is what we have now.

         12                 In 1985, according to, "Why Johnny

         13  still can't Read," only 15 percent of New York

         14  City's elementary schools were using a phonics-

         15  based curriculum as their primary reading

         16  curriculum, not much has changed in all of those

         17  years.  In 1997 we were told by the Chancellor that

         18  the reading scores had their biggest increase in a

         19  decade.  All right?  Despite, and this was a scam,

         20  but despite that fact only 17 percent of this City's

         21  elementary schools, where the Board of Ed's failure

         22  begins, could teach 70 percent or more of their

         23  students to read at grade level, and grade level is

         24  the norm reference passing grade for these tests,

         25  the Board of Ed's tests, and up until this year the
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          2  State's tests.  All right?

          3                 And that is a secret number, when I

          4  was a student in PS11, 70 was a passing grade.  If

          5  you scored 69, you failed and you went to summer

          6  school.  If you failed a test after summer school by

          7  scoring 69 or less on the test, you were left back.

          8  I never failed a test after summer school.  But now,

          9  this year, because the Mayor, and it was the Mayor,

         10  the Chancellor wasn't doing this, the Chancellor's

         11  failed, unfortunately, and what happened was that

         12  the promotion requirement was any student who scored

         13  below the 15th percentile.  The 15th percentile

         14  means basically that 85 percent of the students who

         15  took that test when it was renormed (phonetic) was

         16  scoring above this, not students who scored below

         17  the 49th percentile, because the 50th percentile

         18  we're led to believe is the passing grade on the

         19  Citywide tests, all right?  And the 50th percentile

         20  is just the average score, this isn't a standard or

         21  a minimum standard in anything.  The 50th percentile

         22  is basically 50 percent, half of the students who

         23  took this test in a sampling by the publisher scored

         24  above the 50th percentile and half the students

         25  scored below the 50th percentile, and since 1993 I
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          2  have been calling the Board of Ed trying to find out

          3  if it is 100, if a student can score 100 percent on

          4  a test, what is the percentage that adds up to the

          5  50th percentile?  I have never been able to get that

          6  answer.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Mr. Flynn, you

          8  indicated that you had produced a document that

          9  would fix this whole situation.

         10                 MR. FLYNN:  I gave it to you last

         11  week, I have more copies if you need them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Have you

         13  presented it to the Board of Education?

         14                 MR. FLYNN:  Oh, I have been going to

         15  the Board of Education since 1993, I have been going

         16  to District 15 School Board meetings since 1993.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I want you to

         18  know that I'm going to read that document.

         19                 MR. FLYNN:  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And I'm going to

         21  respond to you on that.

         22                 MR. FLYNN:  Thank you very much,

         23  because we have made what we call the Parents' Union

         24  Challenge to any local school board member, to the

         25  Chancellor, to the members of the Central Board of
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          2  Ed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm talking

          4  about if you have a document - -

          5                 MR. FLYNN:  Yes, Ma'am.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: - -  and it is in

          7  my hands, it tells me you have a remedy for all that

          8  has taken place - -

          9                 MR. FLYNN:  Everything, I mean,

         10  literally, everything.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: - -  I think it

         12  warrant reviewing, and we're going to do that.

         13                 MR. FLYNN:  We think so, we have been

         14  thinking so for three years, but the Chancellor

         15  won't even acknowledge it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Well, right now,

         17  I can only, you know you are testifying before the

         18  Education Committee.

         19                 MR. FLYNN:  Yes, Ma'am.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And I can only

         21  speak for what this Committee is capable of doing.

         22  We will review that, and I promise you, you will get

         23  a response from me.

         24                 MR. FLYNN:  Well, thank you very

         25  much.  But now, just to go back to the thing now,
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          2  the students who were sent to summer school, either

          3  properly or erroneously, was sent because they

          4  scored around the 15 percentile, I believe in some

          5  cases it was as high as the 17 percentile, these

          6  students could not read, they needed summer school,

          7  but the problem was they really shouldn't have

          8  gotten summer school.  At the last meeting I heard

          9  one of the members testifying that a student could

         10  be left back as many as five times.  The students

         11  should never be left back more than once, because

         12  the job isn't being done right the first time, and

         13  this begins this remedial education thing that is

         14  reason to the problems at CUNY, they start at the

         15  Board of Ed, everybody knows this, from Chancellor

         16  Cortinas' time they have been attacking social

         17  promotion.  It's an educationally corrupt and racist

         18  policy.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Mr. Flynn.

         20                 MR. FLYNN:  Yes, Ma'am.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm going to

         22  continue to say to you that I don't think that there

         23  is one person that has come before us in the past

         24  couple of weeks is admitting that we are happy about

         25  what is taking place.  I think what we need to do
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          2  and I have indicated that is to get together, you

          3  know, we can sit back and criticize, but I think we

          4  need to come to the table so that we can put ideas

          5  and suggestion into force, where these young people

          6  would not have to be subject to summer school,

          7  subject to the humiliation that I'm okay, but I

          8  still had to go through a process. Unfortunately, it

          9  has happened, and, you know, I can blame a lot of

         10  people, but I think the responsibility is on all our

         11  heads because we have not come together as one in

         12  behalf of the children of this City, and I think

         13  this is what we are attempting to do.

         14                 You know, we can sit here and blame

         15  CUNY, we could blame the Board of Ed, we could blame

         16  the parents, there is a lot of blame that one could

         17  us out there, but rather than listening over and

         18  over again to that blame.

         19                 You have a solution to the problem, I

         20  have indicated that I would review it, I will talk

         21  to the Board of Ed, I will talk to Counsel to the

         22  Education Committee, the Education Committee members

         23  will look at that, and I promise you, you will get a

         24  response from us.

         25                 MR. FLYNN:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I have heard the

          3  blame, I'm tired that it occurs, I'm tired of people

          4  complaining about what is, let's do something about

          5  it.

          6                 MR. FLYNN:  Well, Ma'am, we have the

          7  plan and we have the way of getting this plan

          8  implemented.  Unfortunately, you see, the problem

          9  is, it's, there is a lot of blame, and there are

         10  people who are responsible, and we blame

         11  politicians.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  But this

         13  Committee is not going to be in the position to

         14  listen to all the blame.

         15                 MR. FLYNN:  No, no, this isn't about

         16  the blame, this is about social promotion.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  This Committee

         18  is in the business of trying to resolve problems

         19  that impact negative on the system.  And while we

         20  appreciate all the testimony, I just don't think

         21  that this Committee have that kind of time to listen

         22  to.  You see, everybody comes up and complain

         23  without giving us a remedy, you have, give us an

         24  opportunity to review it.

         25                 MR. FLYNN:  Yes, Ma'am, well, I gave
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          2  it to you last week.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Fair enough.

          4                 MR. FLYNN:  Didn't you read it?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Well, first I

          6  didn't hear from you.

          7                 MR. FLYNN:  I have been calling you

          8  for days.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Now you are

         10  going to tell me how to do my job.

         11                 MR. FLYNN:  Oh, no, Ma'am.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I don't want

         13  nobody telling me how to do my job.  I'm listening

         14  to you, I promise you, I hear you, I heard you loud

         15  and clear the last time.

         16                 MR. FLYNN:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  We will review

         18  and get back to you.

         19                 MR. FLYNN:  All right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Fair enough?

         21                 MR. FLYNN:  And can I just ask also

         22  that I would like to know if there is going to be a

         23  hearing on these school leadership teams?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Yes, I am, I'm

         25  just waiting for another date, I already have my
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          2  date for the month October, we will be revisiting

          3  the school and then we will come back and listen to

          4  the leadership team, yes, Sir.

          5                 MR. FLYNN:  Because I just wanted to

          6  explain that when Deputy Chancellor Spence came down

          7  to District 15, he said, almost 800 schools had

          8  them.  Now on Channel One, yesterday, they're saying

          9  only 300 schools have functioning teams, and maybe

         10  another 400 are just getting started.  Now I have

         11  been trying for months to get a hold of the forms

         12  that were sent out, I have them here, to every

         13  school in the City about their school- base

         14  management teams, and this is basically the school-

         15  base management scam that failed already three

         16  times, and this isn't going to work either.

         17                 Consensus cannot work.  In Chicago

         18  where parents have been running the school since

         19  1995, they use real democracy, and consensus means

         20  that if everybody here said yes, and I said no, it

         21  can't be done, and that just isn't right, and this

         22  is another way that the special interest groups and

         23  this whole language, no standards movement, which is

         24  keeping a low profile now, but they're ready to rear

         25  their ugly heads again and take over as soon as
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          2  everything dies down.

          3                 We're putting the heat on everybody

          4  and we're keeping the pressure on.  We want phonics,

          5  we want this plan implemented, we're going to make

          6  the New York City public school system one of the

          7  best in the country, within three years of

          8  implementing this plan, and nobody, so far, has been

          9  able to say, this plan cannot work or why.

         10                 Thank you very much, Ma'am.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  We thank you,

         12  and you will be hearing from us.

         13                 MR. FLYNN:  Does anybody have any

         14  questions?

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Well, we

         16  will do the follow- up hearing and we will dissect

         17  the report that you gave.

         18                 MR. FLYNN:  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I call on Mr.

         20  Stevens, the last time, are you hiding out on me.

         21  Did the representative, we will be right with you,

         22  just identify yourself for the record, please?

         23                 MR. STEVENS:  My name is Granville

         24  Stevens.  I'm a parent.  I would like to say I feel

         25  just like a parent because we are being marginalized

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  as parents in this process, and I have heard, you

          3  know, what you have said and I appreciate the

          4  comments of Mary Pinkett and you, because you do

          5  speak for parents.

          6                 Also, I heard that you were looking

          7  for solutions to this issue, and I will try to

          8  revise my comments to speak to solutions and not

          9  only the parent perspective.  One of the things that

         10  I just briefly wanted to respond to, was your

         11  question to Mr. Casey, while he may be accurate, I

         12  think the implication is wrong, because if you have

         13  a functioning school leadership team and it is being

         14  successfully run, then I think that will almost by

         15  definition result in a more vibrant C- 30 process.

         16  The Green Book, the Chancellor's Plan, while it

         17  acknowledges that the C- 30 Committee is separate

         18  from the school leadership team, it does say that

         19  individuals on the C- 30 or in the school leadership

         20  team can serve on the C- 30 process.  So, you know,

         21  ipso facto, if you have a fully functioning school

         22  leadership team, then maybe mainly those members

         23  will either go out and get C- 30 members or serve on

         24  the Committee themselves.

         25                 And I just close the answer to that
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          2  question by saying, from the book, that coordination

          3  between the school leadership team and the committee

          4  is strongly encouraged by the Board of Education.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Excuse me, you

          6  have the school leadership team, you have the C- 30

          7  team, and you have the Parent/Teachers Association.

          8                 MR. STEVENS:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  So you have

         10  three groups of different people, or it could be the

         11  same people?

         12                 MR. STEVENS:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Working in one

         14  school?

         15                 MR. STEVENS:  Yes, and what I'm

         16  saying is that if you have an active school

         17  leadership team, I think the chances are that you

         18  are going to have parents involved that will

         19  facilitate C 30 processes.

         20                 It has been my experience, has been

         21  being a Chair on a C- 30 process as well as a C- 37,

         22  that a lot of times it's the district or the Board

         23  of Ed that might be slow.  We had a principal at

         24  PS40 in Manhattan, who is supposedly a good

         25  district, where the principal announced that she was
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          2  leaving in the Spring, and we have not heard

          3  anything yet, about the formation of the Committee

          4  or the advertising on it.  Now I would not blame

          5  that on parents.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:   I want to, you

          7  know, this could help me, the Counsel to the

          8  Education Committee will look into this.  You have

          9  three sets of parents functioning in one school, and

         10  if my recollection serves me right, I came from a

         11  very active parent background, and if you had an

         12  active PTA, you know, most committees came out of

         13  the PTA, which had to beg people, you know, to be a

         14  part of, no wonder you are running into problems

         15  with your leadership, with your C- 30 and the PTA

         16  you had too many different little groups that comes

         17  together.  Which one is over who, which one is

         18  recognized, you know, you are from the United Parent

         19  Association, you're very much involved, who is

         20  recognized as the top person in the parent group in

         21  the school?

         22                 MR. STEVENS:  I think that the plan

         23  doesn't recognize any hierarchy, but recognizes the

         24  matrix of coordinated activities.  My understanding

         25  is that the central team might the be the school

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  leadership team whose responsibilities should be

          3  limited to the formulation of a comprehensive

          4  education plan and the resources that drive that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  The school

          6  leadership team represents all the parents in the

          7  entire school or district?

          8                 MR. STEVENS:  In the school, it's a

          9  school- based system.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  PTA represents

         11  all the people, parents in the school.

         12                 MR. STEVENS:  All parents who have a

         13  child in that school are eligible for PTA

         14  membership, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And the C- 30

         16  group they make selections on who becomes principals

         17  and assistant principals and other supervisors.

         18                 MR. STEVENS:  Well, they along with

         19  the other constituents of the school teachers who

         20  are represented on that panel will make, will

         21  perform a screening function and then recommend a

         22  couple of candidates.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Do they ever

         24  meet with the PTA?

         25                 MR. STEVENS:  Well the PTA
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          2  frequently, you know, conducts the election or

          3  selection of parent representatives to serve on that

          4  C- 30 screening process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  So you have

          6  three groups of parents.

          7                 MR. STEVENS:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And each one has

          9  a different role, right?

         10                 MR. STEVENS:  That is my

         11  understanding.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  And nobody is

         13  accountable for being the lead in all the three

         14  components?

         15                 MR. STEVENS:  The Chancellor's plan,

         16  if I'm correct, and Mr. Sachs is here, he can

         17  correct me if I'm wrong, envisions a constellation

         18  of parent/teacher activities, and that the central

         19  one, I'm not saying that one has authority over the

         20  other to oversee activities, but the central focal

         21  point in this constellation embodied in this plan

         22  seems to be the school leadership team, but only for

         23  coordination purposes to make sure that information

         24  is appropriately distributed.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  If I were a
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          2  parent, I wouldn't come out three nights a week or

          3  three nights a month.  Did you understand that

          4  process?  The three different committees, because if

          5  you understood, I wish you would help me to

          6  understand it?

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Many

          8  times, Madame Chair, you have raised this issue, in

          9  the two years that I have been here, and I'm in

         10  complete agreement with you.  I am just as confused

         11  as many parents are out there.  I can tell you that

         12  this concept of school leadership team on paper,

         13  probably makes sense.  In practicality, I don't know

         14  where it goes either, because as we have said, you

         15  have a community school board, that is rendered

         16  usual at this stage.  These reforms that were put

         17  through were not comprehensive, they weren't

         18  thoughtful, if they were, they would have taken away

         19  those institutions that no longer serve a function.

         20  I see a competing structure here, but to answer your

         21  question, no, I'm not sure.

         22                 MR. STEVENS:  May I take another

         23  attempt at explaining this, maybe I can do a better

         24  job, would that be okay?

         25                 The Governance Law that was passed in
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          2  1996, I mean in simple, honest terms, did a couple

          3  of things.

          4                 1.  It reacted to the alleged

          5  corruption at the local school board level by

          6  recentralizing certain power and taking it away from

          7  the community school districts, the community school

          8  boards, that was the first phase of it and went into

          9  effect. Superintendents now are under the, you know,

         10  really more accountable to the Chancellor than ever

         11  before.

         12                 The other half of that, which is

         13  really parent and student related, more so,

         14  basically pushed it down to a school based

         15  management system.  So you have power being ripped

         16  up and pushed down to the school level.

         17                 Within the school the Chancellor's

         18  Plan envisioned pushing the power or the authority

         19  to teams of parents, teachers, and the principal to

         20  make decision regarding the educational direction of

         21  the school, i.e., the comprehensive education plan,

         22  and to align the resources that go with it.

         23                 Yes, to answer your implied question,

         24  does that strip, if you will, the school board a

         25  certain power and responsibility?  Yes, it does, but
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          2  the whole purpose of this was to get parents

          3  involved in a meaningful partnership with, in the

          4  education of their children, and meaningful, not to

          5  disparage PTA's, but to get away from that bake sale

          6  stuff and you guys aren't important.  We are going

          7  to be involved in the educational plan, as well as

          8  the budget, and there is a Galaxy 2000 program that

          9  is going to help parents get into the budgetary

         10  process. Right now there is a contract pending at

         11  the Board of Ed to train parents, to reach out and

         12  train parents, and from what I understand there is

         13  about 48 vendors now that are supposed to go around.

         14                 What we need, and the reason that I'm

         15  here is to get this information out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Mr. Stevens.

         17                 MR. STEVENS:  Yes, Ma'am.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  You work for

         19  United Parent Association?

         20                 MR. STEVENS:  I am a Vice- President.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  In what

         22  capacity?

         23                 MR. STEVENS:  I am a Vice- President,

         24  I'm on the Policy and Legislative Committee, as well

         25  as the Communications and Media Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I just want to

          3  enlighten you, I was a parent, a United Parent

          4  Association train for PTAs.  I don't even want to go

          5  into the background of what I have done as a parent.

          6    I learned how to select book material from the

          7  wastepaper baskets of the principals, so you are not

          8  really talking to a group of Council people who

          9  don't know what is up and what is down.  We have

         10  been there, even before you.

         11                 MR. STEVENS:  My mother keeps me

         12  humble and she reminds me that she was a PTA

         13  President, and a UPA delegate and she is 70 years

         14  old.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I just want you

         16  to know that I was helping parents to know what is

         17  expected of their children, because I put three kids

         18  through the system successfully, and I got three

         19  grandsons right now in the system, and I might sit

         20  here and act very retarded to you in not knowing it,

         21  but when I sit to this desk, I know exactly what I

         22  want to know and what is going on.  But the only

         23  thing that is confusing to me is, that governance

         24  may work, but you have to know what the background

         25  of what it was in order to be able to appreciate
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          2  governance and really put governance in perspective.

          3

          4                 First of all, you don't have bodies

          5  of people in place unless there is some kind of

          6  description of what their role is.  You have got a

          7  community school board, the only thing you could say

          8  is that this is a result of corruption, nobody don't

          9  want me to address corruption in the City of New

         10  York, okay?  Because I could go down the line and

         11  nobody would be exempted.

         12                 The second component is you got a

         13  PTA, unless you do away with PTA, and hear me

         14  clearly, and if you want to play, you could play

         15  with the school board and you play with PTA, because

         16  they don't have no role whatsoever.  And the role

         17  that you have created in leadership in C- 30 groups

         18  have not really been identified, you're talking

         19  about training a handful of parents. When you got

         20  every parent, if every parent knew what is expected

         21  of their children, then you would have had parents

         22  question summer school early on, they would say hold

         23  on a minute.  I know what my child is bringing home,

         24  I have gone through the different components of

         25  reform, the alphabet, different kind of soundings
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          2  and so forth.   My son, my baby, who now wanted, his

          3  son is in kindergarten, we have gone through that.

          4                 All I want, and I think this could be

          5  held in the leadership discussion, I want to know

          6  the difference and all these different kind of roles

          7  that have been established here, and who are these

          8  people?  One day there was a hearing, we had a role

          9  of leadership parents, sitting on the front seat,

         10  but we have millions of children, and I have only

         11  seen four seats that was occupied. You have got a

         12  union here, I don't know, you are a parent's union;

         13  am I right, Mr. Flynn?  You are a parent group,

         14  United Parent's Association is a group that helped.

         15                 I go back to Marian White days, if

         16  the name is still around, see those were the days,

         17  okay?  But what I'm saying to you is, that until

         18  someone explains to me what these different roles

         19  are, maybe I would have a different kind of

         20  perspective in what I know to be in order to be able

         21  to get full parent participation.

         22                 First of all, in order for parents to

         23  know to be trained they have to know what is

         24  expected of their child from kindergarten through

         25  the 12th grade.  First of all, if parents are
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          2  helping their children, you have to know.  If

          3  somebody come up to me and said to me, we are giving

          4  parent workshops, budget is fine, to know what the

          5  budget is, but if you don't know what is expected of

          6  your child, budget means absolutely nothing except

          7  the fact that you are not giving us enough money,

          8  you have got to give us enough money.  But you have

          9  to know what is expected of your child in each one

         10  of those perspective areas.

         11                 We talked about early on in Brooklyn

         12  Tech, and I go back to that meeting because that was

         13  the key to our question, promotional policies and

         14  the Regents were proposing to do.  We wanted to

         15  know, what, number one, were our teachers up to par,

         16  did we have enough funds so that we could set up

         17  training for these teachers?  We wanted to also know

         18  if, if you don't have the basic, would our children

         19  fall through the cracks, and I distinctively

         20  remember asking that question, would little DJ, my

         21  four- year- old, fall through the cracks?  Maybe you

         22  would have trained by that time, but I also went

         23  back again to talk in terms of Reginald and Brandon

         24  who are in high and junior high school, will they

         25  fall through the cracks, because something was
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          2  missing in between before we were able to put that

          3  in motion, and I believe in what we're witnessing

          4  right now, we have children falling through the

          5  cracks, because, number one, the training have to be

          6  in place.  I'm not going to say that they're in all

          7  areas of administration and supervision, you got

          8  weaknesses.  I'm not that all teachers in this City

          9  of New York are weak, they're absolutely not,

         10  they're not.

         11                 I have system children, I have three

         12  system children who got their foundation, but I as a

         13  parent knew what they expected in every grade level,

         14  and you told me as the United Parent Association and

         15  Parent Union that you are now demanding, and in your

         16  document, I know I'm going to read where you are

         17  having workshops for these parents to know what is

         18  expected of the kindergarten through the 12th grade,

         19  so that parents can come in and question and know if

         20  their children know one have the right material in

         21  order to be able to adhere to these promotional kind

         22  of procedures, if not, we will be right back where

         23  we were before.

         24                 And I only say that to say to you is

         25  that your group is in a position to set up these
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          2  types of workshops, I'm tired of everybody worrying

          3  about the budget.  You are going to know if the City

          4  of New York and the State don't give you enough

          5  money because the United Federation of Teachers and

          6  CSA is not going to let us quietly move through the

          7  system, say, you're not giving us enough money.

          8  What you need to learn and your parents need to know

          9  is what is expected of my child, and then you would

         10  be in a position to know grade by grade.

         11                 You know those new welcome to school

         12  booklets, there should be a grade level page in each

         13  one of those booklets that says this is what is

         14  expected of your child in this grade.  This is the

         15  kind of material that your child should be bringing

         16  home, and if you check it out, then you would be in

         17  the position of, well, hold on a minute, he is not

         18  getting this.  That welcome to school booklet can be

         19  beneficial to let grade by grade and in this way you

         20  would be the kind of organization that a parent

         21  would come to and say, hold on a minute, my child is

         22  not getting this, why is he getting that, then you

         23  would know that that child is not getting the kind

         24  of material that would qualify him to pass all these

         25  different kind of high standards, because they're
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          2  not going to lower them, and we don't want them, I

          3  don't think we want them to lower them.

          4                 And your, this is where your

          5  organizations come in, and when you guys come in

          6  here and tell me what we need to be doing, there is

          7  something you need to be doing, if you have your

          8  name attached to a parent group, then you are going

          9  to have to help us to train those parents to know

         10  what they're looking at.  If we have to sit down to

         11  get together to do something like this, then we have

         12  to do it, but don't come in and telling what my role

         13  is, and you're exempted.  You are not exempted,

         14  because when I was UPA representative I went out in

         15  various school and did workshops, those workshops

         16  should be able to enhance our young people, our

         17  parents on what to expect of their children, no

         18  matter what level that parent is on.  Would you

         19  agree with me?

         20                 MR. STEVENS:  Two thousand percent.

         21  But I would like to let you know that we are one of

         22  the major co- conveners of Borough President Fields

         23  Second Annual Parent Power Convention, which will be

         24  held on the 23rd, and those points that you made

         25  regarding on how to assess a school, what are the
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          2  standards by grade, the new standards and so forth,

          3  how do you assess the progress or failure of your

          4  student outcomes and so forth, we're going to be

          5  doing that again.  This summer - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Have your group

          7  ever wrote down the questions for a parent to go in

          8  open school week and ask the teacher?

          9                 MR. STEVENS:  Have we wrote questions

         10  down?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  We're fessing

         12  up.  Have you said to a parent, this is the question

         13  to ask the teacher, have you ever done that?

         14                 MR. STEVENS:  We have done that in

         15  our summer academies and fall academies.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm not talking

         17  about school.

         18                 MR. STEVENS:  And our workshops.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm going to

         20  address the same thing that Judith Rizzo said, we

         21  should not lean on summer school, we should go for

         22  the basic educational needs during the regular

         23  school.  I'm talking about, have you prepared a

         24  brochure, either one of you, and I'm talking to both

         25  of you now, a brochure on questions that parents
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          2  could ask, no matter what level you were on, and

          3  mindful of the fact when you take and make that

          4  question for that parent, you have got to be in the

          5  position to help that parent to know what she is

          6  talking about, so she would be able to ask that

          7  question and also know within him or herself that

          8  she is getting the proper answer?

          9                 MR. STEVENS:  We have gone - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  You don't go

         11  into open school week, night, and sit down in front

         12  of the teacher and say, you know, Johnny is so bad,

         13  he didn't do this and he didn't do that. You should

         14  have a number of questions based on the fact that it

         15  was you who trained that parent how to go in, and

         16  that question could be directed, directly to the

         17  teacher and what I am to expect of my child when he

         18  graduates and goes into the fifth grade.  And then

         19  you have open school week, how many times a week,

         20  Andy, how many times a week do you have open school,

         21  month, a year?

         22                 MR. STEVENS:  One week, as far as I

         23  know.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  No, it's more

         25  than one week, I know twice or sometimes two or
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          2  three times a year you go into the school to meet

          3  the teacher one on one.  That last meeting, I'm just

          4  a grandma, you are all sitting out there talking you

          5  all are head of parents, you all ought to know these

          6  dates.  Do you understand me?

          7                 I'm saying to you is, under that last

          8  hearing, open school week hearing, you should train

          9  your parents to say, now what am I to expect of my

         10  fifth grader?  He is in the fourth grade, he is

         11  graduating, what can I expect?  Then you come back

         12  and you tell me, then I think you are doing your

         13  job.  But right now, don't you come in here and tell

         14  me what the Chancellor is doing, what the Mayor is

         15  doing, what UFT and CSA is doing, and you're not

         16  doing it. Because when I get to the table with you,

         17  and I'm going to call you in again, when I get to

         18  the table and I go out in your schools, I'm going to

         19  ask them what you're doing to help them to know what

         20  is expected of them?  This is not a one point kind

         21  of situation, everybody is in this, and when you

         22  come before this Committee, I don't think I want to

         23  hear you complain unless you have done something

         24  about it.

         25                 MR. STEVENS:  I didn't think I was
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          2  complaining, but- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Well I make all

          4  contact accusation when I'm talking, now if it

          5  doesn't fit you, you don't even have to think about

          6  it.

          7                 MR. STEVENS:  When I said summer

          8  academies, I wasn't talking about summer schools for

          9  students.  From your day to this day, we train

         10  parents in our summer and fall academies, and we

         11  were doing that with respect to the Chancellor's

         12  Plan for school leadership teams, and it was very,

         13  again, a very successful operation.

         14                 We had 500 parents in the spring, up

         15  at Bank Street with, you know, mainly from

         16  Manhattan, and we're expecting 1,500 parents on the

         17  23rd for Virginia Fields from all boroughs that are

         18  coming in, and we're setting up similar conferences

         19  with the Borough President out in Brooklyn, Queens,

         20  and the Bronx, right now.  And we continue to do

         21  that.  I mean, our mission is to train parents so

         22  that they can negotiate this maze of regulations.

         23                 If I may, can I talk to the, you

         24  know, you did raise a question, would things have

         25  been different had there been school leadership
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          2  teams with respect to the social retention policy?

          3  I would like to talk to that, if I may?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I don't want to

          5  get into leadership area now, because that is a

          6  whole other hearing.  I would like the Board of

          7  Education to enlighten my staff of the Education

          8  Committee on it before we get into it.  Did you

          9  invite us to your conference?

         10                 MR. STEVENS:  You're invited to our

         11  conference. You're definitely, you're our guest of

         12  honor.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I don't want to

         14  be honored, I just want to be, I don't even want to

         15  be a guest, I want to be a participant.

         16                 MR. FLYNN:  I just wanted to point

         17  out that we advise our members to keep a low profile

         18  because of what has been going on.  We spread the

         19  Parents Union by word of mouth, and there has been a

         20  campaign of intimidation lies against our group, and

         21  it has been going on for like three years, all

         22  right?  And our known members - -

         23                 MR. STEVENS:  Should I come back when

         24  he finishes?

         25                 MR. FLYNN:  I apologize, the Chairman

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  was speaking to both of us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  You know, I

          4  recognize that you guys have a personality problem.

          5                 MR. FLYNN:  No, I don't think we do.

          6                 MR. STEVENS:  I don't even know him,

          7  I don't think there is a personality problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I just want you

          9  to know that this is my hearing, and the reason why

         10  that I asked him to, you know, I was addressing

         11  both, because you know when you come to my table,

         12  you have got to take one thing in mind that you

         13  representing children.  Whatever else you are

         14  representing out there is irrelevant to this

         15  Committee, we want to hear about what you are doing

         16  for children, and we don't want to be in the

         17  position of thinking that we're indifferent.

         18                 Do you want to wrap up, Mr. Stevens,

         19  I will let you wrap up, and then I will come back to

         20  you, Sir.

         21                 MR. STEVENS:  Okay.  With respect to

         22  the social promotion or social retention policy, one

         23  of the things that the parents felt was a serious

         24  problem was that the vote was held before school

         25  even started.
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          2                 We do like to testify before the

          3  Board of Ed and have a parent perspective, parent

          4  input, but this proposal was put forth, and as Dr.

          5  Hammer indicated, there wasn't any real discussion

          6  or opportunity from the public.  And so, I think

          7  notice was inadequate and parents were not afforded

          8  the opportunity to comment and to have an impact.

          9                 When we testified before the Board

         10  regarding the Capital Budget, we were told by the

         11  majority at that time, that the budget had to be

         12  reduced to be more realistic based on real funds

         13  versus some pie in the sky wish list.  Well in this

         14  case, I think we heard, again, that there was no

         15  infrastructure or financial incentive to accomplish

         16  what we project to 360,000 kids that could be left

         17  behind.  Now it seems to me that if we have to deal

         18  with realistic budgets than these unfunded mandates

         19  should also be suspect.

         20                 The fact that it is not aligned with

         21  any fiscal policy, the City's Independent Budget

         22  Office has yet to get any statistics at all to

         23  figure out what this is going to cost in terms of

         24  teachers or dollars.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I want you to
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          2  know, Mr. Stevens, that we have our finance person

          3  here for the Education Committee, and when we're

          4  negotiating the budget, more or less, these kinds of

          5  recommendations come through the Finance Committee,

          6  which I'm on, Chair of the Education Committee,

          7  everything that the Board of Education have asked us

          8  to carry as an item, we carry as that.

          9                 The United Federation of Teachers

         10  submit certain things that impact positive on the

         11  learning of workshops, of the learning of programs

         12  that impact on children and so forth, but never,

         13  ever was this raised about any additional monies

         14  that related to promotional policies; am I correct?

         15                 And you know, it don't have to be the

         16  Board of Ed that makes recommendations.  You as an

         17  individual could make a proposal and say, you know,

         18  we need this.  I would suggest that you talk to the

         19  Chancellor, but many times people do not raise

         20  individual issues on their needs.  But this

         21  Committee raised this early on, this Committee asked

         22  them if they needed additional funds to help

         23  teachers to be prepared for this promotional policy?

         24    And we didn't, you know, we only address what

         25  comes to us.  I only take the blame for where the
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          2  blame lies, never was this raised to this Council

          3  that they was a need for additional money.  I'm

          4  going to call a couple of my colleagues in the State

          5  and ask them, did they raise it there?  Because it

          6  would seem to me that these issues could be raised

          7  with the State Education Chair and its Committee,

          8  because that is whether the whole new standards

          9  started, that it was mandated through the Regents

         10  that you had to do this, and if you felt that it

         11  wasn't the necessary resources for it, then you

         12  didn't say anything about it.  And you don't need

         13  the Board of Education to carry that agenda, you

         14  would be, you know, looking real good today, if you

         15  gave that to the Board of Ed in the last budget

         16  negotiation to carry, and you carried it, and

         17  nothing happened.  Then you could accuse this

         18  Committee and this Council and this Mayor, you know,

         19  you didn't do what you were supposed to do.  It's

         20  easy for you to say, well, Rudy Giuliani didn't do

         21  this, Priscilla Wooten is sitting quiet on the side

         22  and so forth, but you have a responsibility to do,

         23  and that is what I want you two to leave here with.

         24  That your responsibility is to stop complaining

         25  about what is, to be a part of what could be, and I
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          2  will work with you on it.

          3                 If you're talking about parent

          4  workshop, and I know that that little scenario that

          5  I told you about and tell the parents what to expect

          6  of them, of their children, what a fourth grader or

          7  fifth grader is expected to have, the kind of

          8  material, if you're training, and if you're part of

          9  it, you say you are the leadership group, then you

         10  should know what is expected of each grade level

         11  across the board, and there is no law that says you

         12  can't put it in writing to give a little piece of

         13  paper.  If you feel, and I'm going to challenge you

         14  to do it, if you feel that there is a need to print

         15  material that impacts on parents, then I'm willing

         16  to carry that in the next budget negotiation, I'm

         17  ready to say that we will set aside, and I'm sure my

         18  colleagues would not object, to setting aside a

         19  certain amount of money to print material of that

         20  kind that is going to get in each individual

         21  parent's hands.

         22                 When that child is promoted to fourth

         23  grade that parent should have a booklet that says

         24  this is the kind of materials that is expected, this

         25  is what this child, and an illustration of what that
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          2  child should be getting, I will carry the budget for

          3  that concept.

          4                 MR. STEVENS:  Well, what I will do

          5  and undertake to do right here, is that there are

          6  materials that we do use.  We're not the primary

          7  presenters, but we bring in experts to do that.

          8  There are, I know you are familiar with the new

          9  standards that the Board has implemented, I'm not

         10  fully, you know, behind them, but there are booklets

         11  called new standards and they do precisely what

         12  you're saying, by grade.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I did not say

         14  what other people should do.

         15                 MR. STEVENS:  These are the materials

         16  that we're using.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm simply

         18  saying what you should be doing as parent

         19  representatives, plain English, take it from that

         20  booklet, the promotional standards, take it from

         21  that and put it in simple form.  You can form two

         22  questions that would help a parent to know what

         23  they're child is doing, or what is expected of that

         24  child, only two questions.  And also go a step

         25  further and say these are the questions you should
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          2  be asking the teacher, why does Johnny, does not

          3  have this, because I am told that it is required.

          4  The Chancellor is not going to stop you from doing

          5  that, the Mayor is not going to stop you from doing

          6  that, and most certainly, this Committee is not

          7  going to stop you from doing that.

          8                 I'm just simply saying the next time

          9  you come before me, I want you to attach to your

         10  presentation what you have done in a booklet form,

         11  as it relates to individual parents as their

         12  representative.

         13                 The United Federation of Teachers,

         14  they come in with their proposals.  Don Singer comes

         15  in with his proposal on what I would do, and your's

         16  better have that in there telling me what you did

         17  for parents.  I can't talk to you guys if you're not

         18  going to tell me that you are going to be helping

         19  parents to know how to go in there.  I role played

         20  as a parent, you could bring parents in and say,

         21  this is the teacher and this is you, go in, well,

         22  what is expected?  Do you want to get a parent

         23  angry, you get a parent who don't know what they're

         24  doing when they go in and talk to their teachers?

         25  The anger comes because I don't want you to know how
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          2  dumb I am, but if I'm bright, you got something on

          3  your hand, and that is what I want you to make those

          4  parents out there.

          5                 MR. STEVENS:  I mean, would you

          6  entertain, you know, being invited to our workshops

          7  so that you could see the,  you know, exactly what

          8  we do.  I mean, out, we had over 500 parents at the

          9  Con Edison facility in Saturday morning starting at

         10  eight o'clock, many of whom were Title I parents,

         11  single parents and so forth.  We gave workshops on

         12  school leadership teams, assessments and things like

         13  that.  And what I will do is put together a manual

         14  of the kinds of materials that we distribute.  There

         15  is always time for serious questions and answers, we

         16  try to empower parents every step of the way, but

         17  let undertake to get those materials to you, so you

         18  have an understanding, at least a baseline of what

         19  we're doing.

         20                 A lot of it comes out of the long

         21  tradition that UPA has had in parent training and

         22  empowering parents.  Basically we would, you know,

         23  going to do more provided we get this contract. We

         24  have formed a collaboration with the New York Urban

         25  League as well as the UFT to bring the school
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          2  leadership team and other parenting empowering

          3  methods to the City.  We're hoping that we will get

          4  that, and even if we don't, we will continue in our

          5  mission to educate parents to take a more active

          6  role.

          7                 What I was trying to speak to is that

          8  if we had an opportunity, if we could speak before

          9  the Board of Ed in the time, we have things that

         10  weren't done this way, these are what the feelings

         11  of parents are.  Councilwoman Pinkett underlined a

         12  lot of what we were going to set forth, but we

         13  concur with her and Dr. Hammer that the attendance

         14  criteria should be the same.  We believe that there

         15  should be an appeals process that takes into

         16  consideration possible abusive in the system.  And

         17  the other thing that we wish to bring to your

         18  attention is that if you take a look at these entire

         19  policies, the operation of all these policies, the

         20  unlimited retention, then you couple the policy on

         21  putting kids that don't finish high school, you

         22  know, within a certain amount of time, an

         23  alternative settings.  If you look at the kids being

         24  bounced out of school and drop- out rates, before

         25  the Regent standards kick in, if you look at the
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          2  teachers Regents standards, the teachers'

          3  requirements for improved teaching don't kick in

          4  until 2000, you're basically punishing kids.  And

          5  what we want to do, basically, is to, you know, I

          6  guess, achieve some equity, put the horse before the

          7  cart and say, let's have, let's pay principals,

          8  let's pay teachers, hold them accountable and let

          9  the parents work with them in equal partnership for

         10  the education of their children.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  If you are

         12  having a workshop and these are key questions that

         13  really should be answered, if I were you and you say

         14  you're part of the leadership team, I would make it

         15  my business before I had to be a part of that

         16  conference to go back and get that from the Board of

         17  Education.  I don't have an answer for you on this

         18  Committee.

         19                 These are questions that should be

         20  raised directly with the Board of Education.  If

         21  they're not clear in your head, you can imagine what

         22  it is doing to mine.

         23                 MR. STEVENS:  Thank you.  Okay, do

         24  you have a question?  Thank you very much for your

         25  testimony, and if you have anything to add, real
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          2  fast, because I kind of, you know?

          3                 MR. FLYNN:  I just wanted to add

          4  that, you see, one of the problems for our

          5  organization that our known members are harassed,

          6  our children are gone after, and we have been

          7  basically living under almost a reign of terror for

          8  three years.  And so, when you're talking about

          9  asking questions or getting something for parents to

         10  answer, I have been making free information law

         11  requests since 1994, I believe it was.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  You're not going

         13  to get the questions that I asked you to get asking

         14  for freedom of information, you're going to have to

         15  make that up yourself.

         16                 MR. FLYNN:  Yes, well, you see the

         17  problem is, we can't, we're keeping a low profile

         18  because we don't want our children harassed any more

         19  than what it is already going on, all right?  My son

         20  has been assaulted, my wife had been fired from her

         21  job, now I can't prove these things happened because

         22  of my organizing activities with the Parents' Union,

         23  but they happened under some very suspicious

         24  circumstances, and this has happened to other

         25  members who complained about it.  This is one of the
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          2  reasons why we want a Federal Investigation, because

          3  everyone who has got responsible for exercising

          4  oversight from the school boards to the City Council

          5  to the State has clearly failed in their job, and

          6  this should not be going on.  This has been going on

          7  for decades, and basically, what we're saying is, we

          8  have got the plan, we have got a way to implement

          9  the plan, and - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I'm going to

         11  review your plan and I'm going to get back to you.

         12                 MR. FLYNN: - -  this is what we're

         13  all about, this is the only thing that all of our

         14  members agree on is the plan. All right, we have

         15  different views on social promotion, we have

         16  different views on whether the Chancellor, who we

         17  believe is on his way out right now, should be fired

         18  or not, but - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Your mission

         20  goes beyond training children, you have got an issue

         21  with personnel - -

         22                 MR. FLYNN:  The entire.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: - -  and this is

         24  not the time to address it here.

         25                 MR. FLYNN:  I understand Ma'am.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Okay.

          3                 MR. FLYNN:  I'm not going to, I just

          4  wanted to point that out, we have some very big

          5  problems with other groups and with the people who

          6  do run this system, because we're basically saying

          7  we have no power.  We have had no power for three

          8  decades, and now we're going to do what parents in

          9  Chicago did back in 1995, we're going to take

         10  control over the schools.  We wanted the power to

         11  hire and fire - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Well, you better

         13  hurry up and do what you say you're going to do,

         14  because you tell me in one breath that you don't

         15  have no power, you don't have no people, you're

         16  being threaten.

         17                 MR. FLYNN:  No, we're taking power

         18  away from - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  So you need to

         20  analyze what mechanisms you are going to use with

         21  this takeover system.  Because I have been here for

         22  over 45 years in this system, this is the best

         23  system that I know we have.  Yes, we may not move as

         24  rapid as a change in society would led us to move.

         25  However, I believe that every reform, you know,
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          2  rules are made to be broken, rules are made to be

          3  corrected, and I believe that in time, and these

          4  hearings that will be going on now, will be

          5  addressing that new reform that came in place a few

          6  years ago.  Because in order to be able to see the

          7  process, you have got to be in the process, you have

          8  got to know the process, and you have to be up front

          9  and criticizing that process, even though it may not

         10  take shape or form, you have to be in it.  And I

         11  don't believe that we can put it on another body to

         12  say that you're not doing what you are supposed to

         13  do, because I don't hire Chancellors, I don't hire

         14  Central Board of Ed members. However, I have a

         15  charter mandate that have oversight hearings and

         16  make recommendations.  I believe that this Council

         17  has lived up to its obligations, I believe that this

         18  has been the most aggressive City Council that I

         19  have known when it comes to issues of this City.

         20                 And if you are telling us now that we

         21  need to go in there, then you should have changed

         22  the reforms that was made with all these other

         23  things, then you should have given us a role, maybe

         24  we would have shown you how we would change the

         25  system.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 MR. FLYNN:  Well we will just have to

          4  agree to disagree on this, and thank you very much,

          5  Ma'am.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  United

          7  Federation of Teachers, please, identify yourself

          8  for the record, Ronald Jones?

          9                 MR. JONES:  This is old testimony, it

         10  says good morning.  Good afternoon, Chairwoman

         11  Wooten and members of the Committee.  My name is Ron

         12  Jones.  I'm the Vice- President of the UFT.  Thank

         13  you for allowing me to testify today on behalf of

         14  UFT President, Randy Weingarten and the union's

         15  140,000 members.

         16                 Earlier this month I testified before

         17  the Board of Ed in favor of ending social promotion,

         18  a policy that was well intentioned, but ended up in

         19  too many cases to be a cruel hoax on students and

         20  parents.  Since then we have learned that thousands

         21  of students were wrongly required to attend summer

         22  school because of errors made by the testing

         23  company, and some of them subsequently failed the

         24  test for promotion.  This fiasco caused students and

         25  their parents distress, financial hardships and cost
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          2  millions of City tax dollars.

          3                 The Chancellor had no choice but to

          4  permit these students to move forward, and he is

          5  right to force a conversation between each parent

          6  and respective principals to decide whether each

          7  really should be promoted.  He is also right to

          8  demand that CVT McGraw Hill pay for its inexcusable

          9  mistakes.

         10                 What was sadly overlooked was the

         11  fact that the reading scores actually rose almost 5

         12  percent over 1998, a one year gain that is very

         13  impressive and confirms that a focus on literacy has

         14  helped raise student achievement and should continue

         15  to do so. What the scoring missed does point up is

         16  what we have said all along, when new tests are

         17  introduced the results should be used as a baseline

         18  for which to measure future student progress, alone

         19  they should never be used to make high stake

         20  decisions, such as holding students back or taking

         21  over schools.  Because in a vacuum they often don't

         22  accurately reflect student learning even when the

         23  tests are scored correctly.  Once a test has been

         24  used, the Board should utilize it in combination

         25  with criteria, such as teacher evaluations and
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          2  attendance records to determine whether a student

          3  must attend summer school or stay back.

          4                 Students should be required to show

          5  up at school consistently and demonstrate mastery of

          6  classroom work before moving to the next grade.  To

          7  the Board's credit, this is their new written

          8  policy, the next challenge is to make the policy a

          9  reality.

         10                 Despite the testing fiasco, the UFT

         11  remains convinced that ending social promotion is

         12  essential to help all students reach higher

         13  standards, and that mandatory summer school is one

         14  of several interventions devised to help us get

         15  there.  Of course, these policies must be

         16  implemented in the right way.

         17                 Now comes the hard part, securing the

         18  resources to make sure summer school is effective

         19  providing enhanced instructions for students who are

         20  left back, and more important helping students avoid

         21  retention by getting it right the first time.  To

         22  help all students succeed in summer school we must

         23  continue to shrink class sizes, at the very least,

         24  all remedial summer classes, K through 12 should be

         25  capped at 10 students.  With all the attention and
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          2  the resources focused on the early grades, I'm

          3  afraid the high school summer programs became the

          4  stepchild of the system this year.  Classes bulged

          5  at 40 or more and attendance requirements were so

          6  loose that students cut classes at will, making

          7  continuity of instruction impossible.  To ensure

          8  that more summer classes are staffed appropriately

          9  with teachers teaching within their license and

         10  paraprofessionals and other educators providing

         11  mandated services to students with special needs,

         12  educators should be offered appropriate rates of

         13  pay.  Adequate amount of supplies must be provided

         14  to every classroom, and of course, use of air

         15  conditioned facilities should be a priority, it's

         16  unfair to ask students and teachers to learn and

         17  teach in sweltering heat again.

         18                 When students are held back, we

         19  simply can't offer them a do over.  Schools must

         20  provide these students with significant,

         21  individualized instruction and smaller classes so

         22  teachers can diagnose and address their specific

         23  learning needs. A strong curriculum is needed,

         24  including intensive literacy and math instruction

         25  based on programs that have a track record of
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          2  improving student achievement.

          3                 In addition, schools should give all

          4  staff the opportunity to participate in school-

          5  based professional development during the school

          6  day.  Even the best educators can benefit from focus

          7  training to deal specifically with the learning of

          8  students with serious reading and math deficiencies.

          9

         10                 This is what we're trying to do with

         11  the 40 extended times schools.  Many school

         12  districts, especially those with large numbers of

         13  retained students need assistance and support from

         14  the Central Board to mount appropriate programs for

         15  these students. For summer school the Chancellor

         16  provided detailed instruction and programmatic

         17  direction for the elementary, middle school classes

         18  and some high school classes for students who had

         19  failed the Regents exams.  At a minimum, this should

         20  be done for all retention classes and programs.

         21  Since remediation is an outgrowth of a Citywide

         22  promotional standards, it is perfectly appropriate

         23  for Central to promulgate standards for remediation

         24  programs, with room for district modifications.

         25                 Of course, there is still no

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  substitute for providing the right conditions for

          3  every child to learn the first time, which would

          4  reduce the number of students who need to repeat a

          5  grade.  The right conditions includes small classes

          6  headed by well prepared teachers, timely assessments

          7  and intermediate intervention, so that a child's

          8  weakness can be addressed before he or she falls too

          9  far behind.  Clear goals so that students and their

         10  parents know what is expected of them each year.

         11  The Chairperson alluded to this.  The UFT is

         12  spending $2 billion of its dues money over the next

         13  four years to develop a core curriculum just for

         14  that reason.

         15                 The system has made some important

         16  progress in providing these conditions, but if we're

         17  going to avoid an overwhelming summer school

         18  enrollment, we have to accelerate these efforts.

         19  All the early grade classes must be reduced to no

         20  more than 20, not just one class out of three or

         21  four.  The upper elementary, middle and high school

         22  grades should be limited to no more than 25

         23  students.  Last year the Chancellor limited English

         24  and Math Regents classes to 25, and the teachers

         25  reported that this was a great help in their efforts
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          2  to prepare those students for the exams.

          3                 As I said these improvements will

          4  take resources, we must seek additional funding for

          5  more space, all our sincerest efforts to reduce

          6  class sizes will be stymied.  To provide the

          7  necessary intervention we need to hire more

          8  paraprofessionals and prepare them to help students

          9  in the classroom.  The nationally acclaimed success

         10  of PS161 in Brooklyn illustrates the value of

         11  paraprofessionals, despite the poverty level of its

         12  students, PS161 post reading scores equal to those

         13  in affluent districts, mostly by using highly

         14  trained para's to support literacy instruction.  We

         15  need to provide more guidance and health services as

         16  well as support for students with special needs in

         17  both general and special education classrooms.

         18                 We simply can't raise the bar and

         19  tell the kids to jump higher.  We have to be

         20  prepared to give them every boost we can, that cost

         21  money, but it's worth it to produce a generation of

         22  students reaching higher and higher standards.

         23                 Thank you, I appreciate your time, if

         24  there are any questions I will be happy to try to

         25  address them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Welcome, Mr.

          3  Jones, it is nice to see you.

          4                 MR. JONES:  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  You know

          6  being a former teacher, myself, and a school board

          7  member, I have perhaps more insight and requested to

          8  be a member of the Education Committee, I did that

          9  because I wanted to be able to help, of course, in

         10  any way that I could.  You bring up a lot of issues,

         11  draw a few conclusions, as far as the money goes to

         12  certain areas, of course, like you mentioned the air

         13  conditioning in the summer, and although most, a lot

         14  of people would just go well, let them work, you

         15  know, these kids can't take it.  But if anybody has

         16  ever sweltered 100 degrees, and if they could try to

         17  remember if they were able to concentrate on

         18  anything, they're really an extremely unique

         19  individual.  So are there any RFP's in the works

         20  from the UFT or anything written in which we have

         21  exactly or approximately what the cost might be

         22  working with the Board of Ed, are they working with

         23  you on this?

         24                 MR. JONES:  I don't know if we have

         25  any specific costing on air conditioning.  But I
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          2  would like to make a comment about the air

          3  conditioning.  My belief is, and Bill correct me if

          4  I'm wrong, I think about 20 percent of the school

          5  system is, now has some functioning air conditioning

          6  in the system.  Obviously, if we're going to have a

          7  summer program which will be larger, hopefully not

          8  too much larger than it was in the past, obviously,

          9  we should be beginning now to think about maybe air

         10  conditioning some more schools in preparation for

         11  that.  My only plea would be, in my meetings with

         12  the Board of Education on an annual basis, is that

         13  they fully utilize the air conditioning space that

         14  they currently have.  It's a struggle sometimes to

         15  even get them to use the space that is currently air

         16  conditioned, not across the City, but in certain

         17  districts, in certain boroughs, that became an

         18  issue, I don't why it should be an issue, but it

         19  became an issue, so part of what we have to do is

         20  make sure that the Board utilizes all the air

         21  conditioned space that it currently has, while at

         22  the same time, I understand the cost, but if you're

         23  going to have a policy where you are going to have

         24  large numbers of kids who are going to have to

         25  attend and staff, who are going to have to attend
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          2  summer school, then I think we have to think about a

          3  rational plan of phasing in some more air

          4  conditioning on a reasonable basis and making sure

          5  that they plan it that was so that they put the air

          6  conditioning in the places where they might be

          7  running the summer schools.  I think there is some

          8  logic to that, and I certainly will be meeting with

          9  the Board over the course of this school year to try

         10  to push them to just to do just that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well,

         12  speaking for myself, I would love to play a role in

         13  that, I can't speak for the Chair, I feel she

         14  probably feels the same way, but she will answer

         15  that herself.

         16                 I would like to apologize for being

         17  late, I had a major rat infestation problem, the

         18  four legged variety in my community that held me.

         19  There were about 200 people outside.

         20                 MR. JONES:  I hope it's not too close

         21  to my house.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Avenue U in

         23  Sheepshead Bay area.

         24                 MR. JONES:  That is too close to my

         25  house.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Madame Chair.  Thank you, Ron.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  We thank you for

          5  your testimony, we have had some success stories,

          6  we're still working on some of them small classroom

          7  size, different kinds of programs, we visited UFT

          8  Headquarters, we're impressed with the telephone

          9  system that you have set up for our young people to

         10  call in.  This Committee is asking, we're going to

         11  revisit some of those things.

         12                 MR. JONES:  Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I just want to

         14  raise a question, do you feel the input on this

         15  promotional policy concept by the United Federation

         16  of Teachers have been successfully being included

         17  with recommendations and all that, do you feel that

         18  you are actually a partner in this process?

         19                 MR. JONES:  The Chancellor and his

         20  staff did have a promotional policy and the UFT was

         21  included in this advisory group, so I felt that we

         22  did have an opportunity to have input into the

         23  policy, and as a matter of fact, I testified in

         24  support of the policy, not unequivocal support in

         25  the sense that we liked everything that was in the
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          2  policy, but I think the Chancellor was right to

          3  initiate the policy and to get it started, because

          4  if you wait to get every single thing done exactly

          5  right before you start to do something, you will

          6  never start anything.  So it was important to get

          7  started.  I believe the Chancellor sought input from

          8  us, we gave it, whether you always get everything

          9  that you want when you work together as a group,

         10  that is not going to happen, but I believe that the

         11  plan that is out there is a plan that if we can work

         12  together to get the resources and the people to work

         13  with that plan to make it work, it has an

         14  opportunity to succeed and to really help kids.

         15                 So, in fairness, yes, the Chancellor

         16  did consult with us, we gave our input, again, like

         17  everything else when you work in a community in a

         18  group, as you know in the Council, you work, you

         19  give your input and hopefully they will take much of

         20  what you offer, but sometimes you don't get

         21  everything you think you need in order to get

         22  something done.  But we're going to keep working

         23  with the Board to try to make the plan better and

         24  more effective, and one of the other roles that we

         25  played, that you play as well, is that we monitor
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          2  them through our representatives in every school to

          3  say, if this is what you say you guys are going to

          4  be doing, we're going to be watching to make sure

          5  that you're doing what you say you're doing.

          6                 And so, with regard to social

          7  promotion we were consulted, as I said, we support

          8  the policy as they have annunciated, we gave them

          9  some recommendations, they now have a continuing

         10  advisory group on how to implement it, and we're

         11  part of that group as well, and again, hopefully

         12  they will listen and continue to listen.  So in

         13  respond to your question, that is a long response,

         14  but it's a fair one.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  No, I believe

         16  that we should be honest with one another.

         17                 MR. JONES:  I'm trying to be upfront

         18  and direct as I can.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I also believe

         20  that sometimes you give something time to work.

         21                 MR. JONES:  Yes, it's new.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Most times it

         23  does not work out in some areas and you have to

         24  clean it up a little, but I believe that if we're

         25  talking in terms of the changing society, we have
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          2  make them be prepared and prepare our young people,

          3  and that the higher standards, I don't have problem

          4  with at all.

          5                 I think what I would like to see

          6  happen is that we fess up to our weaknesses and

          7  strengthen them, that is, you know, and I'm fully

          8  aware of some areas where there are weaknesses to

          9  you, you know, without having a criticism that, and

         10  I'm sure the Chancellor knows where those weaknesses

         11  and he attempted, you know. It's interesting, we

         12  want change and we talk about reforms, but when

         13  people do the kind of strategies to help to make

         14  that right, like you know remove someone, put him

         15  back.  I know some superintendents who had not

         16  adhered to some of the regulations and so forth, I

         17  know some principals who did not participate fully

         18  in the process, I could give you the names of them,

         19  I'm so good at knowing what they didn't do, I could

         20  tell you who they are, but I'm mindful of the fact

         21  that personnel matters should kind of be kept on a

         22  low key, but I'm fully in cooperation with the

         23  Chancellor when it came to weaknesses, and you have

         24  got to remove your weaknesses if you're going to be

         25  in a position to reform your reform and making sure
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          2  that those areas of weaknesses are not addressed.

          3                 I think we might be going in the

          4  right direction, I hold my criticism until I have a

          5  couple of more oversight hearings, and we're going

          6  to be making some strong recommendations as it

          7  relates to the promotional policy, we're not going

          8  to just make them to the City of New York, we're

          9  going to make them to the State where they are in

         10  actuality birthing these kinds of criteria and so

         11  forth.

         12                 Right direction, I know if we intend

         13  for our future to be stabilized, we have to make

         14  these kinds of reforms stabilized, and the policy as

         15  I address the two parent representatives that the

         16  key, I was told when I was a PTA President, the

         17  direction that I got and I still hold everybody to

         18  that, is that when, once when we had a budget

         19  crisis, when we didn't have any money, and we went

         20  into the principal's office to talk about programs,

         21  and the first thing they said to me, well, you know,

         22  the first thing that you don't have too much control

         23  over is the direct service to the child, and that

         24  was a teacher.  And I still hold that to be true,

         25  good teachers, good training, on making sure that
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          2  classes are covered, et cetera, making sure that our

          3  teachers are up- to- date, and that is why always,

          4  not as a weak point, but as an up- to- date concept

          5  that we constantly worry about having teacher

          6  training money, and we also worry about paying you

          7  comparable salaries and so forth.

          8                 I think the concepts are there and I

          9  think that our minds are there and we know what we

         10  have to do.  I believe that, you know, the storm has

         11  already happened and the calm will come, and our

         12  children will be back on, you know, level, parents

         13  will not worry about whether they are being

         14  promoted, because we know that children were walking

         15  through this system, we know that it just finally

         16  caught up to us that it impact, impact our larger

         17  institutions and so forth.  And again, we made

         18  argument and we didn't want to admit that, but we

         19  also know that there are children that don't read,

         20  and some of them will never read.  However, we

         21  should have a mechanism in place that would identify

         22  them early on, so that they don't wait until they

         23  get through high school to graduate and think about

         24  going to college and being embarrassed because all

         25  the other kids are making arrangements to go to
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          2  college, and they are not in the position.

          3                 And that is why I have so much

          4  problem with Special Ed and we're going to address

          5  that.  I think that has a lot to do with it, this,

          6  what should I say, label, labeling children and some

          7  children will not go to school if the kids tease him

          8  and say, you're in a special education, that is a

          9  special ed class.  There has got to be a way for us

         10  to individualize our children and let them know that

         11  they're in a comparable learning environment without

         12  making them feel that something is wrong with them,

         13  and I'm going to be looking at that.  I think this

         14  Committee is going to be really looking into ways

         15  and means of finding a way of identifying those

         16  young people and make them feel as comfortable as a

         17  child who may not have a problem.  In reading,

         18  sometimes a child cannot read for various reasons,

         19  and teachers should be trained to identify that

         20  early on, even to some of our own children in your

         21  household learn different from one child to another

         22  and all that needs to be taken into consideration.

         23                 Is there any other questions from my

         24  colleagues? Having heard none, and I appreciate your

         25  testimony.
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          2                 MR. JONES:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  I also

          4  appreciate all of you coming back, because we want

          5  you to know that we appreciate you, and most of the

          6  times, I just want to explain my vote and explaining

          7  my vote it is very difficult to invite an agency to

          8  come into testify and have everybody come before the

          9  testimony that you are looking for and you are

         10  waiting to get questions from them to raise, and

         11  that is why most of the time you're left the last to

         12  testify, because I know you want to beat up on them,

         13  and I'm not going hear to beat up on, because this

         14  Committee, you know early on, even when we're having

         15  budget discussions, I keep telling people, we as a

         16  Committee have to raise questions to the agency and

         17  those of you who are second, because some people are

         18  under the impression that they are always last, but

         19  not true, but the first come first because those are

         20  the principals, and you see, our staff who sit up

         21  here, Heather has to know what kind of questions she

         22  needs to give me to ask, Nicole has to know how much

         23  money you are spending and why you are spending it,

         24  because when she gets that brochure from OMB and the

         25  Board of Ed, she has to know what she heard in that
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          2  testimony in actuality and put into reality.

          3                 So sometimes our process may look a

          4  little different, and it is different, it's not

          5  intent to put people on hold, and that is why I'm

          6  delighted that you came back and we gave you an

          7  opportunity, and we appreciate that.

          8                 MR. JONES:  Well, thank you for the

          9  opportunity to come back, and anything that we can

         10  do to be of assistance to the Committee, we will be

         11  happy to do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Thank you.

         13  Having heard all and nothing else, this Committee is

         14  not recessed, it's adjourned. Thank you very much.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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